



CODE OF CONDUCT FOR EMPLOYEES OF SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

Version control table			
Original version published:	September 2016		
Current version number:	Draft no 2		
Current date	July 2019		
Date current version published:	July 2019		
Due date for next review:	November 2020		
Author:	Human Resources		
Equality and Diversity Impact Assessment date:			
Assessed by:	Iain Davidson – Employee Relations Manager Simone Doyle – Equality & Diversity Officer		
Contact details:	Human Resources Scottish Borders Council Head Quarters Old School Building Newton St Boswells Melrose TD6 0SA Tel 01835 825052/3 (HR reception) askhr@scotborders.gov.uk		

This is an electronically retained document. All printed copies are uncontrolled.

This document can be made available in an alternative format or language. For further details please contact Human Resources (as above).





CODE OF CONDUCT FOR EMPLOYEES OF SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

Contents Page:

	Page No.
1. INTRODUCTION	3
2. THE SEVEN PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC LIFE	3
3. YOUR RELATIONSHIPS and PERSONAL CONDUCT	4
4. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	5
5. OPENNESS AND DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION	6
6. PAID EMPLOYMENT AND VOLUNTARY WORK OUTSIDE THE COUNCIL	6
7. HOSPITALITY	7
8. GIFTS	7
9. CORRUPTION	7
10. <u>USE OF RESOURCES</u>	8
11. APPOINTMENTS	8
12. CONTACT WITH THE MEDIA	8
13. POLITICAL NEUTRALITY	8
14. YOUR RIGHTS AS AN EMPLOYEE	9

List of Appendices:

		Page No
1.	Guidance On Responding To Offers Of Hospitality Or Gifts	11
2.	Procedure on the Disclosure of Unlawful or Improper Actions – otherwise known as "Whistle Blowing"	13
3.	Record of Hospitality or Gift Offered To You By Any Organisation or Individual (whether accepted or not)	16





CODE OF CONDUCT FOR EMPLOYEES OF SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

1 INTRODUCTION

- 1.1 The public expects a high standard of conduct from all local government employees in Scotland. There is a National Code of Conduct for Councillors and COSLA (Convention of Scottish Local Authorities) has produced a National Code of Conduct for local government employees in Scotland. The Scottish Public Services Ombudsman will use this National Code as a benchmark of good practice where a complaint of maladministration has been made. The Code of Conduct for Employees of Scottish Borders Council (the Code) is therefore based on the National Code and it sets out the minimum standards of conduct that are expected of you as an employee of Scottish Borders Council. This Code applies to all employees at all levels, whether permanent, temporary or fixed term employees. Scottish Borders Council also expects the same standards of conduct from consultants, independent contractors and volunteers.
- 1.2 The Bribery Act 2010 came into force on 1 July 2011. The Act imposes severe criminal penalties on any employee who is found guilty of requesting, accepting or agreeing to accept any financial or other advantage for carrying out activities in the course of their employment or while carrying out a function of a public nature.
- 1.3 The Code also reflects the values of the Council which are:
 - Accessibility
 - Courtesy
 - Openness
 - Responsiveness
 - Respect
- 1.4 The Code does not affect your rights and your responsibilities under the law; its purpose is to provide clear and helpful advice to you. Some parts of the Code may apply more to some employees than to others because of the nature of their work, but all employees must act in accordance with the Code. Those employees involved in processing applications for services or resources, licences or statutory consents and also those involved in the procurement of goods and services need to pay particular attention to the Code. A breach of the Code by any employee may give rise to disciplinary action.
- 1.5 Equally importantly, the Code also provides you with guidance about your rights and responsibilities at work.
- 1.6 As far as possible you should also comply with the Code where you are appointed as a representative of the Council on any organisation, Trust or company.
- 1.7 Please ensure therefore that you are familiar with the contents of this code.

2 THE SEVEN PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC LIFE

2.1 The Code incorporates "The Seven Principles of Public Life" identified by the Nolan Committee on Standards in Public Life. They are listed below, altered slightly to place them in a local government context.

2.2 Selflessness

You should take decisions solely in terms of the Council's interests. You should not take decisions in order to gain financial or other benefits for yourself, your family, your friends or any other person.





2.3 Integrity

You should not place yourself under any financial or other obligation to an individual or an organisation which might influence you in your work with the Council.

2.4 Objectivity

Any decisions or recommendations which you make in the course of your employment including making appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards or benefits must be based solely on merit.

2.5 Accountability

You are accountable to the Council as your employer. The Council in turn is accountable to the public.

2.6 Openness

You should be as open as possible in all the decisions and actions that you take. You should give reasons for your decisions and restrict information only when it is clearly demanded by Council policy or the law.

2.7 Honesty

You have a duty to declare any private interests which might affect your work with the Council.

2.8 Leadership

If you are a manager, you should promote and support these principles by leadership and example.

3 YOUR RELATIONSHIPS and PERSONAL CONDUCT

The Council expects the highest standards of personal conduct from its employees, both within and outwith the workplace. The public image of the Council is enhanced or diminished by the conduct of its employees.

You must comply with all Council policies, procedures and applicable external Codes of Practice and keep yourself up to date with any new or revised policies, procedures or relevant external Codes.

You must treat with respect anyone you come into contact with in the course of your employment with the Council, including fellow Council employees, councillors, members of the public and contractors. You must behave courteously at all times. This includes times when you are not at work.

You should not make or publish derogatory statements about any such person by any means. This includes making the statement directly, by text message or by electronic means, for example through social networking sites.

Relationships

3.1 The Public

You may have contact with members of the public as users of services, clients, citizens or potential employees. You should always be courteous and helpful. You should deal fairly, equitably and consistently with each member of the public.

3.2 The Council is committed to promoting equality of opportunity and eliminating discrimination within its own employment practices and service delivery. You must therefore comply with any equal opportunities policy adopted by the Council

3.3 Councillors

The National Code of Local Government Conduct which relates to Councillors gives the





following guidance on the relationship between Councillors and employees -

- 3.4 "Both Councillors and employees are servants of the public, and they are indispensable to one another. But their responsibilities are distinct. Councillors are responsible to the electorate and serve only as long as their term of office lasts. Employees are responsible to the Council. Their job is to give advice to councillors and their Council, and to carry out the Council's work under the direction and control of the Council, their committees and sub-committees.
- 3.5 Mutual respect between Councillors and employees is essential to good local government. Close personal familiarity between individual Councillors and employees can damage the relationship and prove embarrassing to other Councillors and employees."
- 3.6 These principles apply equally in this Code.

3.7 Colleagues

As an employee of Scottish Borders Council you must treat your fellow employees with courtesy and respect and have regard to relevant policies and procedures of the Council, for example, the Equality, Diversity and Human Rights Policy and Dignity and Respect Policy

3.8 Contractors

You must be fair and impartial in your dealings with contractors, sub-contractors and suppliers. By law you must give written notice to the Council of any interest you have in any contract or proposed contract. Such notice must be given to your line manager for inclusion in the departmental register of employee interests.

- 3.9 If you are involved in ordering of works, goods or services and/or the tendering process you must follow the procedures and rules contained in the Council's Financial Regulations and Standing Orders in relation to tenders and contracts.
- 3.10 If you are an employee who has both a "client" and "contractor" responsibility you must observe the requirement for accountability and even-handedness in undertaking these two roles.
- 3.11 If you have access to confidential information on tenders or costs for either internal or external contractors you must not disclose that information to any unauthorised individual or organisation. If you are in any doubt you must discuss any proposed disclosure with your line manager.

4 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

- 4.1 As an employee of Scottish Borders Council you must not allow any private interest to influence your decisions.
- 4.2 You must not use your position to further your own interests or the interests of others who do not have a legitimate right to benefit under the policies of this Council.
- 4.3 You may have a private interest which relates to the work of the Council. That interest may be a financial one or one which a member of the public might reasonably think could influence your judgement. In addition close family members or people living in your household may have financial interests in the work of the Council. All such interests of which you are aware must be declared to your line manager for inclusion in the departmental register of employee interests.
- 4.4 If you have an interest in a matter which is being discussed at a meeting of the Council, at one of its committees, sub-committees or joint committees, COSLA, or, at any other work related meeting which you are due to attend you must declare the interest to your line manager or other senior officer prior to the meeting or immediately it becomes





apparent. You must not be present at the meeting when the matter is being discussed and decided upon

- 4.5 You may feel able to state truthfully that an interest would not influence you. However, you must always comply with the "objective test" which is whether a member of the public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard the interest as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your discussions or decisions.
- 4.6 If you are a member of an organisation or a club where membership might result in a conflict of interest in relation to any aspect of your work with the Council you must declare this membership to your line manager for inclusion in the departmental register of employee interests. This requirement applies equally to membership of organisations or clubs which are not open to the public and which have secrecy about their rules eg Freemasonry.

5 OPENNESS AND DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

- 5.1 Scottish Borders Council's decision making process must be transparent and open and the Council must provide the public with clear and accessible information about how it operates. There is a comments and complaints procedure which is in place for the public to use when things go wrong but also to express satisfaction with our services.
- You should be aware however that there are exceptions to the principle of openness where confidentiality is involved and information may be withheld. For example, it may be necessary to keep, as confidential, information about either an individual or an organisation which might compromise the right of personal or commercial confidentiality or breach Data Protection legislation. Any legal duty to provide such information may override these considerations.
- 5.3 In the course of your employment you may become aware of details of the personal circumstances of members of the public, whether known to you or not, councillors or other employees. You must not discuss these personal details with anyone, including family members, friends or fellow employees, except when it is necessary for the performance of your duties.
- 5.4 You must follow any policy of the Council or guidance issued on making information available to the public and you must not break the law in this area. If you are in any doubt, you should seek guidance through your line manager or Legal and Democratic Services as appropriate.

6.0 PAID EMPLOYMENT AND VOLUNTARY WORK OUTSIDE THE COUNCIL

6.1 Your loyalty as an employee should be to the Council. However you are permitted to undertake work outside the Council unless there is a possible conflict or adverse effect on the work of the Council. With the exception of Chief Officials (Chief Executive, Executive Directors, Service Directors and Chief Officers) who are required to obtain written permission there is no specific requirement for any other employee to obtain permission to undertake other work. You are advised however to seek the advice of your line manager where any doubt exists or where there is some similarity between your job with the Council and the other work outwith the Council. Under no circumstances should you make use of confidential or sensitive information gained through your employment with the Council. You are not permitted to use the equipment or resources of the Council when carrying out work outside the Council except with the specific approval of the Service Director (see Use of Resources) and you must not undertake such work during your normal working hours. You must ensure that the total hours you work for the Council and any other employer together do not breach the requirements of the Working Time Regulations.





- 6.2 If you receive a fee for a publication, broadcast, speech or lecture where you have used official information, Council time or Council resources then the fee should be paid to the Council.
- 6.3 Employees whose job involves processing applications for services or resources, licences or statutory consents and also those involved in the procurement of goods and services must pay particular attention to the sections on Hospitality and Gifts

7 HOSPITALITY

- 7.1 In the course of your employment you should only accept offers of hospitality if you can answer 'Yes' to the questions
 - 'Can I justify this?' and
 - 'Can I be sure I will not be subject to legitimate criticism?'
- 7.2 If you are in any doubt, you should seek the advice of your line manager, but err on the side of caution.
- 7.3 In accordance with the Council's Financial Regulations, employees must declare any offer of hospitality valued at over £50, whether accepted or not, in their departmental register as soon as possible after the offer.
- 7.4 You should only accept offers to attend social or sporting events where these are clearly part of the life of the community or where the Council would be expected to be represented. Before accepting any such invitation you must seek specific authority from your Service Director. You should not accept regular hospitality from the same source.
- 7.5 If you are making a visit to inspect equipment, vehicles, land or property with a view to possible purchase on behalf of the Council, or to attend meetings to discuss such matters, you must ensure that the costs are met by the Council.
- 7.6 Appendix 1 contains further guidance to assist you in responding to offers of hospitality.

8 GIFTS

- 8.1 In the course of your employment you must not accept personal gifts from other organisations or members of the public, colleagues, pupils etc except for items of nominal value for example pens, diaries, calendars, flowers or other small tokens of gratitude.
- 8.2 In accordance with the Council's Financial Regulations employees must declare the offer of gifts valued at over £50, whether accepted or not, in their departmental register as soon as possible after the offer.
- 8.3 Appendix 1 contains further guidance to assist you in responding to offers of gifts. Day Care Outreach Staff must also refer to guidelines issued by Lifelong Care on Dealing with Client Finances.

9 CORRUPTION

- 9.1 It is important that you are aware that it is a serious criminal offence (and disciplinary matter) for you corruptly to receive or give any gift, loan, fee, reward or advantage for doing or not doing anything or showing favour or disfavour to any person in the course of your work with the Council.
- 9.2 The Bribery Act 2010, which came into force on 1 July 2011, provides that it is a criminal offence for an employee to request, accept or agree to accept any financial or other advantage for carrying out a function or activity in the course of their employment. This applies where there is an expectation that the function or activity will be performed in





good faith and/ or impartially. In practice this will cover any duty an employee undertakes in their employment with the Council.

The penalties for a breach of this Act can extend to up to ten years' imprisonment and an unlimited fine.

It should be noted that there is a breach of the Act when an employees agrees to accept an advantage even if that advantage is never actually gained.

The Act applies whether the advantage is to be given to the employee personally or to any other person.

10 USE OF RESOURCES

- 10.1 You and your colleagues serve the public and you must remember this principle when you use Council equipment, materials and resources, in order to ensure value for money. You must follow any policy/practices of the Council on the personal use of Council equipment.
- 10.2 In accordance with the Financial Regulations no Council property or equipment may be used other than for Council purposes except with the specific approval of the Service Director.

11 APPOINTMENTS

- 11.1 Employees must follow the principles contained in the Council's Recruitment and Selection Policy and Procedure. All appointments must be made solely on the basis of merit.
- 11.2 If you are involved in the recruitment and selection process and have any kind of relationship which might affect your ability to be impartial, that relationship must be declared to your line manager who will decide whether you can or cannot participate in the recruitment and selection process.
- 11.3 The same procedure must be followed by you where any other personnel procedure is involved, for example, grievance, discipline or job evaluation and where a similar kind of relationship exists. Where any doubt exists, the advice of your line manager should be sought.
- 11.4 You must not lobby a Councillor or another colleague either directly or indirectly to secure either your own appointment or promotion or the appointment or promotion of another person. If you have been lobbied either by an applicant, another colleague, a Councillor or any other person you must report the matter to your line manager. Your Line Manager may discuss this with departmental managers and/or HR as appropriate.

12 CONTACT WITH THE MEDIA

- 12.1 In the course of your employment with the Council, you should only make contact with the media or respond to enquiries from the media where you have been authorised to do so by the Chief Executive, Executive Director, or Service Director. Any such statement you make must reflect the policies and views of the Council. You must follow any Departmental instructions in relation to contact with the media.
- 12.2 The provisions set out in the previous paragraph do not apply to employees where they are acting in their capacity as trade union representatives and are communicating the view of their trade union to the media.





13 POLITICAL NEUTRALITY

- 13.1 Your political neutrality as an employee is expected by the public and must be respected by Councillors. The political activities of a small number of employees are restricted by law. Those employees holding politically restricted posts will have been notified individually in writing by HR confirming the restrictions which apply.
- 13.2 You must serve the Council as a whole and all Councillors, regardless of their political outlook. The Chief Executive and senior officers have an additional responsibility to help ensure the implementation of the policies of the Council.
- 13.3 You must implement the policies of your Council irrespective of your personal view
- 13.4 If you are asked by a Councillor to provide assistance on a matter which is clearly party political or which does not have a clear link with the work of the Council you should politely refuse the request and inform the Councillor that you are referring the matter to your line manager, who must ensure that it is reported to the Chief Executive.
- 13.5 Some employees will have a close working relationship with Councillors of the majority political group (or groups) which form the administration of the Council. However, any political group may wish a Council employee to attend a meeting to advise the group. The following procedure about access by political groups to the advice of employees must be followed, therefore if you are approached directly you should refer the Councillor(s) to the Chief Executive.
 - a) The office Bearer(s) (of the group) must first approach the Chief Executive.
 - b) The nature of the advice sought must be indicated to the Chief Executive.
 - c) The Chief Executive will decide whether attendance at the meeting is appropriate and if so which employee(s) should attend.
 - d) Once the employee has given the advice to the group the employee must leave the meeting before any decision is made.
 - e) Strict confidentiality must be observed by the employee the discussion in one political group should not be disclosed to another political group or to any member of that group.

14 YOUR RIGHTS AS AN EMPLOYEE

14.1 Public Statements

As a member of the public, you are entitled to express your views about the Council, provided you do not make use of any confidential information gained through your work with the Council. However, in your work capacity you should not knowingly criticise the Council either through the media or at a public meeting, or in any written or oral communication with members of the public.

14.2 Access to Councillors

As a member of the public, you are entitled to raise with Councillors any complaint which you have about the services of the Council, but if your complaint concerns any aspect of your work you must make use of the Council's Grievance Procedure. Similarly, you should not contact an MP or MSP regarding any aspect of your employment.





14.3 Fair and Reasonable Treatment at Work

You are entitled to expect fair and reasonable treatment by your colleagues, managers and by Councillors. If you feel that you have been unfairly treated or have been discriminated against you are entitled to make use of the Council's Grievance Procedure, Dignity and Respect Policy or other relevant procedure or policy.

14.4 Disclosure of Unlawful or Improper Actions "Whistle Blowing"

There may be rare occasions when you feel that you have been or may be required by a colleague, a Councillor or a member of the public, or by an organisation, to act in a way which is dangerous, fraudulent or otherwise illegal, improper, unethical or which is otherwise in conflict with the principles or the spirit of this Code of Conduct. There may also be occasions where you have information leading you to believe that an employee, Councillor or other person associated with the Council is behaving dangerously, fraudulently or otherwise illegally, improperly, unethically or in a way which is otherwise in conflict with the principles of this Code of Conduct.

- 14.5 Examples of this type of unacceptable behaviour are:
 - failure to comply with a legal obligation
 - improper or unauthorised use of public or other funds
 - a criminal offence
 - financial irregularity
 - dishonesty
 - malpractice
 - corruption
 - bribery
 - abuse of people within the Council's care
 - miscarriage of justice
 - danger to the health or safety of any individual
 - damage to the environment
 - the deliberate concealing of information about unlawful or improper actions.
- 14.6 In these circumstances you must follow the Council's procedure for dealing with such matters which aims to ensure that they are raised and addressed within the Council (see Appendix 2).

15. DRESS CODE

Whilst the Council does not have a formal dress code the clothes you wear should be appropriate to your work. Employees in offices are not necessarily expected to wear suits but will be expected to dress smartly. If you are in any doubt please ask your line manager. The Council provides uniforms for some operations in order to present a smart image to our customers. Where these are issued they must be worn. Where no uniforms are issued then dress should be appropriate to your area of service.

Employees who have Council uniforms should be aware that they are viewed as representing the Council by the public when wearing their uniform. Accordingly if an employee is involved in an incident or engages in inappropriate conduct while wearing their unform, this may be viewed as bringing the Council into disrepute and action may be taken as appropriate.

Employees who have Council ID badges/ lanyards should be aware that these are issued for identification and security purposes only and should not be worn outwith working times. Lanyards should not be worn while driving a motor vehicle.





16. PERSONAL PROPERTY

16.1 You are responsible for your own property. The Council cannot accept responsibility for any personal possessions damaged or lost on Council premises. You should not leave money or valuables unattended in offices or cloakrooms.

The Council will not accept responsibility or liability for loss or damage of your (either

The Council will not accept responsibility or liability for loss or damage of your (either owned or being used by you) vehicle or property. This is irrespective of whether the loss or damage is caused by a Council employee or by a third party. All goods left on Council premises will be at your sole risk.

17. PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT (PPE)

17.1 This covers the clothing and safety equipment provided by Scottish Borders Council that you must wear to work safely. You will be told of what PPE you will need to do your job and it will be given to you by your Line Manager. Where eye protection, protective clothing or any other safety equipment is issued it must be worn or used. You will be trained in its correct use, storage and maintenance. The safety equipment and clothing given to you must be used when needed. You must look after it and keep it in good condition ready for

use. Replacement PPE is available from your Line Manager. The use of safety equipment is compulsory and disciplinary action may be taken against anyone who does not use the appropriate equipment or does not follow safety instructions.







Appendix 1

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR EMPLOYEES OF SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

Guidance On Responding To Offers Of Hospitality Or Gifts

1 GENERAL GUIDANCE

- 1.1 This guidance note is intended to give you, as a Scottish Borders Council employee, further guidance on what action is appropriate if you receive an offer of hospitality or a gift in the course of your employment.
- 1.2 The following apply to offers of both hospitality and gifts:
 - you should treat <u>all</u> offers of hospitality or gifts with caution
 - where you receive any offers of hospitality or gifts, you should be sensitive to the timing of decisions which affect the provider of the offer, for example, during the tendering process for letting contracts or the processing of an application for a Council service such as licensing, housing or planning
 - you must reject any offer where it might be seen as intended to influence you in the discharge of your duties
 - you should accept an offer only if you feel that by doing so you can comply with these guidelines. If you feel that an offer should not be accepted, or you have any doubt that it should be accepted, you should err on the side of caution and refuse the offer.
 - where you decline an offer of hospitality or a gift, you should do so courteously
 and inform the offerer of the requirements and standards of the Council as set
 out in the Code.
 - you must declare any offer of hospitality or gifts valued at over £50, whether accepted or not, in your departmental register as soon as possible after the offer, by completing the Employee Hospitality Register Form (Appendix 3).

2 GUIDANCE ON OFFERS OF HOSPITALITY

- 2.1 Offers of hospitality may be made to Council employees for a variety of reasons and whether any such offers should be accepted will depend on a number of different factors. The following guidance is intended to assist you in making judgements on these matters.
 - you should only accept offers of hospitality if you can answer 'Yes' to the questions
 - 'Can I justify this?' and
 - 'Can I be sure I will not be subject to legitimate criticism?'
 - you should accept an offer of hospitality only if there is a genuine need for you to impart information or represent the Council in the community.
 - you should only accept offers to attend social or sporting events where these are clearly a part of the life of the community or where the Council would be expected to be represented.
 - you should not accept regular hospitality from the same source.

3 GUIDANCE ON OFFERS OF GIFTS

3.1 Similar considerations apply to dealing with the offer of gifts. Such offers may vary from items of token value which it would be discourteous to refuse, to items of value where the offer may be interpreted as either an attempt to influence your judgement or to reward you for services supplied or to be supplied to the offeror of the gift.





- 3.2 You may only accept small personal gifts of low value such as pens, diaries, calendars, flowers or other small tokens of gratitude.
- 3.3 You must not encourage anyone to offer you a gift or other personal benefit from any organisation or individual in connection with your duties. Also you must not accept an offer of a gift from any company which you know to be in negotiation with, or tendering for a contract with the Council.
- 3.4 Day Care Outreach Staff must also refer to the "Guidelines for Day Care Outreach Staff when dealing with Client Finances" issued by Lifelong Care.
- 3.5 On rare occasions senior officers may be asked to accept a gift on behalf of the Council. Such gifts should only be accepted following consultation with the Director of the department and will become the property of the Council. A record of the receipt of such official gifts will be maintained by the Monitoring Officer (currently the Service Director, Regulatory Services.)
- The acceptance of a gift or other hospitality may constitute a breach of the Bribery Act 2010, which carries severe criminal sanctions (see Section 9).







Appendix 2

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR EMPLOYEES OF SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

Procedure on the Disclosure of Unlawful or Improper Actions – otherwise known as "Whistle Blowing"

1 INTRODUCTION

- 1.1 This procedure provides a mechanism to enable employees to raise genuine and legitimate concerns about behaviour which is dangerous, fraudulent or otherwise illegal, improper, unethical, or which is otherwise in conflict with the principles or the spirit of the Code of Conduct. Examples of this type of unacceptable behaviour are detailed on page 10 of the Code of Conduct. It is intended to protect:
 - employees who raise genuine and legitimate concerns internally and in exceptional circumstances with appropriate external regulatory bodies
 - the Council and other employees against false, vexatious, malicious or frivolous accusations
- 1.2 The Council recognises that sometimes it will be very difficult for employees to report a concern, especially if it relates to a fellow employee. You are assured that you will not be penalised in any way for bringing forward genuine concerns. The Council will not tolerate harassment or victimisation and will take action to protect those who raise a concern in good faith. However, where an employee makes an allegation they know to be false or which is vexatious, malicious or frivolous disciplinary action may be considered against the employee making the allegation.
- 1.3 The Council also recognises that employees will wish their concerns to be raised and dealt with in a confidential manner. The Council will do its best to protect an individual's identity when a concern is raised. Your initial contact will always be dealt with in the strictest confidence and discussed only with other relevant persons for the purpose of seeking advice. You must understand however, that the investigation process may reveal you as the source of the information and the information or concerns you express may lead to you becoming involved in other processes which may include being a witness under the Council's disciplinary procedure or a criminal investigation. In these circumstances anonymity is unlikely to be maintained, however, you will be given as much support as possible throughout such processes.
- 1.4 Employees are encouraged to put their names to allegations as concerns raised anonymously are much less powerful. However, concerns raised anonymously may be investigated at the discretion of the Council, taking into account
 - · the seriousness of the issue raised
 - · the credibility of the concern, and
 - the likelihood of confirming the allegation from attributable sources

2 PROCEDURE

2.1 If you have been required or requested to behave in a way which is dangerous, fraudulent or otherwise illegal, improper, unethical or which is otherwise in conflict with the principles or the spirit of the Code of Conduct, or you have information leading you to believe that an employee, Councillor or other person associated with the Council is acting in this manner, you must report this to your Line Manager. Following consultations as





appropriate with the Executive Director, Service Director or other Senior Officers in the Council, your Line Manager will inform you

of what action will be taken.

- 2.2 If you feel unable to approach your Line Manager because, for example, it is the behaviour of your Line Manager that is the cause of your concern, you must report the matter to the next appropriate more senior officer in your department. Following appropriate consultation you will be informed by the Senior Manager of the action being taken.
- 2.3 If you feel unable to discuss the matter with any Manager within your department, or the concern relates to an Elected Member, you must report the matter to the Monitoring Officer for the Council, currently the Service Director Regulatory Services. Following consultations as appropriate with the Chief Executive or other Senior Officers of the Council, the Monitoring Officer will determine what action should be taken and will inform you of this.
- 2.4 If you feel that it is not appropriate to approach any of the above you should report the matter to the Chief Executive who will determine what action should be taken and inform you of this.
- 2.5 If you feel that it is not appropriate to approach any officer of the Council, including the Chief Executive, you should report the matter to one of the following Councillors:
 - Leader
 - Depute Leader
 - Civic Head
 - Depute Civic Head

Or, if you prefer, with any other Councillor, who would raise the matter on your behalf with one of the above Councillors.

Following appropriate consultation you will be informed of what action is being taken.

- 2.6 Concerns may be reported orally or in writing and normally an appropriate officer will be appointed to carry out a comprehensive internal investigation. This will usually commence with a detailed interview of the employee making the allegation and a full record of the concerns will be prepared. Once the investigation is complete the investigating officer will send their report to the appropriate managers, normally including the Executive/ Service Director and Chief Executive. Where it is considered that a complaint is justified, appropriate action, possibly including a disciplinary hearing, will be taken. Although you might be involved in such a hearing as a witness you will not be informed of the outcome of the hearing as this is confidential. Where there is evidence of possible criminal activity, the Chief Executive will decide whether to inform the police, who may carry out their own investigation.
- 2.7 All concerns should normally be reported as detailed above in the first instance. You may only make a disclosure to other parties where you remain dissatisfied with the outcome of the internal procedure or in exceptional circumstances where you reasonably believe that:
 - you would be victimised as a result of raising the issue, and/or
 - that relevant evidence would be concealed or destroyed by the Council, and/or
 - the alleged breach of conduct was so exceptionally serious as to justify bypassing the internal procedure.
- 2.8 Appropriate other parties are





- **SBC Councillors** SBC Councillors can be contacted at Council HQ, Newtown St Boswells, or at their regular surgery. If you are unsure how to contact them, call the Council on 01835 824000 for advice.
- External Auditors Audit Scotland scrutinise the Council's finances and performance. Tel No: 0131 625 1500.
- the Police suspicions of fraud or corruption may be investigated by the Police
- The Scottish Public Services Ombudsman this is an independent body set up by the Government to deal with complaints against public bodies in Scotland. Scottish Public Services Ombudsman Tel No: 0800 377 7330.
- Public Concern at Work this is a charity which provides free and strictly
 confidential legal help to anyone concerned about a malpractice which threatens
 the public interest. They operate a whistleblowing advice helpline on <u>020 3117</u>
 <u>2520</u> or can be e-mailed at whistle@protect-advice.org.uk
- The Health and Safety Executive http://www.hse.gov.uk/contact/contact.htm Tel No.: 0300 003 1647.
 - your Trade Union





APPENDIX 3

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL - EMPLOYEE HOSPITALITY REGISTER FORM

Record of Hospitality or Gift Offered To You By Any Organisation or Individual (whether accepted or not)

Name of Employee:	Click here to enter text.	Department:	Click here to enter text.	Month Ending:	Click here to enter a
		•		•	date.

Employee to complete columns 1 – 4. Manager to complete columns 5 - 6

Date Of Offer	Offered By	Acce _l Yes/ I		Details (incl. approx value)	Managers Comments/Signature	Authorised Yes / No / N/A		
Click here to enter a date.	Click here to enter text.			Click here to enter text.	Click here to enter text.			
Click here to enter a date.	Click here to enter text.	\boxtimes	\boxtimes	Click here to enter text.	Click here to enter text.			
Click here to enter a date.	Click here to enter text.	\boxtimes		Click here to enter text.	Click here to enter text.			
Click here to enter a date.	Click here to enter text.	\boxtimes		Click here to enter text.	Click here to enter text.			





Employee signature:	Click here to enter text.	Date:	Click here to enter a date.
inpidyod digilatardi		_ ~	

In accordance with the Council's Financial Regulations, each Employee will complete this form in respect of hospitality or gifts offered (value over £50). Before accepting hospitality, this has to be authorised by your Service Director. The form should then be sent to your Service Director who will maintain your Employee Hospitality Register.

<u>Note:</u> employees should not accept regular hospitality from the same source, and must not accept an offer of a gift from any company which they know the Council to be in negotiation with, or who is tendering for a contract. Further guidance on responding to offers of Hospitality or Gifts is contained in the Code of Conduct for Employees.